
Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr T Uren  
Direct Dial: (01257) 515122 
E-mail address: tony.uren@chorley.gov.uk 
Date: 21 June 2005  
 

Chief Executive: 
J W Davies MA LLM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dear Councillor 

 

A meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel is to be held in the Committee Room, 

Town Hall, Chorley on Wednesday, 4th January, 2006 commencing at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies of Absence   

 
 2. Declarations of Any Interest   

 
  Members of the Panel are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal 

interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the 
Members’ Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, then the 
individual Member should not participate in a discussion on the matter and must 
withdraw from the Committee Room and not seek to influence a decision on the 
matter. 
 
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 8 November 2005 (enclosed). 
 
 

 4. Public Participation in the Council's Decision Making Process - Scrutiny Inquiry   
 

  a) Reports on Sub-Groups' Visits  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 



 

2 

   The Panel, at its last meeting on 8 November, agreed arrangements for 
available Members of the two Sub-Groups to attend the following meetings as 
part of the Panel’s collation of evidence for the Inquiry: 
 
Area Forums/Committees Sub-Group 
 

• Pendle Borough Council’s West Craven Area Committee meeting on 29 
November; 

• South Ribble Borough Council’s Western Parishes Area Committee 
meeting on 5 December; and  

• Pendle Borough Council’s Colne and District Area Committee meeting 
on 8 December. 

 
The Chairman will invite the Members who were able to attend the above 
meetings to report their findings on the visits and comment on the perceived 
effectiveness of the respective Authorities’ adopted arrangements. 
 
The Chairman’s note on his visit to Pendle Council’s West Craven Area 
Committee on 29 November is enclosed for information. 
 
Public Speaking/Questions Sub-Group 
 
At the last Panel meeting, the Sub-Group members expressed a wish to attend 
a meeting of West Lancashire District Council’s Planning Committee.  
Unfortunately, none of the members were able to attend the 15 December 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
The next meeting of the Planning Committee is to take place on Thursday, 19 
January 2006 at 7.30pm in the Civic Offices at Ormskirk.  The Sub-Group 
members will be asked to indicate if they are able to observe this meeting.   
 

  b) Future Visits   
 

   The Panel is reminded of the invitation from West Lancashire District Council 
for members to attend and observe West Lancashire Annual Council Meeting 
as an Assembly to be held at the Civic Offices, Ormskirk on Wednesday, 25 
January 2006 at 7.30pm.  The Annual Assembly concept represents an 
alternative form of public participation to the Area Forum/Committee model.  
The Chairman hopes that as many members of the Panel as possible will be 
able to attend the Assembly. 
 
The Chairman has also suggested that the Public Speaking/Questions Sub-
Group might benefit from observing the full Council meetings of a few 
neighbouring Authorities which allow members of the public to participate in the 
debates and/or ask questions.  Details of forthcoming Council meetings in 
those Authorities where the public participation facility is regularly practised will 
be presented to the meeting so that Members’ attendance and travel 
arrangements can be co-ordinated.       
 

 5. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2005/06  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

  A copy of the 2005/06 Work Programme is enclosed for consideration.  
 

 6. Any other item(s) which the Chairman decides is/are urgent   
 

 
Yours sincerely 



 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

z

 

 

Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

(Councillor Perks (Chair), Councillors Bedford, Birchall, Buckley, Brownlee, Culshaw, Mrs 

Gray, Morgan, Mrs Smith and Whittaker) for attendance. 

 

2. Agenda and reports to Deputy Chief Executive/Group Director, Head of Public Open Space 

and Head of Environmental Services for attendance. 

 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

 

 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



This page is intentionally left blank



Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 8 November 2005 

 
Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
Tuesday, 8 November 2005 

 
Present: Councillor M Perks (Chair) and Councillors Brownlee, F Culshaw, G Morgan and 
A Whittaker 

 
 

05.COM.33 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of Councillors 
Bedford, Birchall, Mrs M Gray and Mrs I Smith. 
 

05.COM.34 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of personal or prejudicial interest by any of the Members 
in any of the agenda items. 
 

05.COM.35 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 4 
October 2005 were confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 

05.COM.36 BUSINESS PLANS, 2005/06 - SECOND QUARTER UPDATES  
 
The Panel received and considered the Business Plan monitoring statements for the 
second quarter period ending on 30 September 2005 in respect of the services and 
functions falling within the remit of the Panel. 
 
(a) Development and Regeneration Unit 
 

The Head of Development and Regeneration submitted the first Business Plan 
monitoring statement for the new merged Development and Regeneration Unit 
for the quarter period up to 30 September 2005. 

 
The statistical information revealed that the Unit was exceeding each of its 
monthly development control performance targets and that only the year to 
date performance target on sickness absence had not been reached. 

 
The report also indicated that the new Unit’s forecast financial outturn was 
likely to be within the allocated cash budget.  In addition, the Chief Officer 
highlighted a number of the major service developments and projects which 
were currently being pursued within the Units. 

 
(b) Leisure and Cultural Services Unit 
 
 The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services presented his Unit’s Business Plan 

monitoring statement for the quarter period up to 30 September 2005. 
 
 The Chief Officer pointed out that three of the Unit’s four key performance 

indicators (KPIs) to be measured on a monthly basis were new composite 
indicators.  While data in respect of the KPIs had been collected up to the end 
of September, the appropriate target would be set in the third quarter period in 
order to ensure that statistics were collected on a consistent and meaningful 
basis.  The KPI relating to the annual survey of satisfaction would be reported 
later in the year. 

 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 8 November 2005 

 The report also revealed that the Unit’s forecast cash outturn for the financial 
year was likely to be contained within its allocated budget, and highlighted the 
major projects with which the Unit was currently engaged. 

 
(c) Future Monitoring Reports 
 
 The Panel AGREED that future Business Plan monitoring reports should 

contain 
 

(i) only one simplified schedule showing information on the respective 
Unit’s key performance indicators, revealing the elements of the 
service which were either meeting, exceeding or failing to reach their 
respective targets; 

(ii) a brief summary of the services being measured with a short 
explanation of the appropriate KPI statistic and its relevance, if 
appropriate, to Government grant aid; and 

(iii) a brief reference to the Unit’s progress on its major tasks. 
 

05.COM.37 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN THE COUNCIL'S DECISION MAKING PROCESS - 
SCRUTINY INQUIRY  
 
 
(a) Revision of Project Outline (Scoping document)  
 
The Panel was advised that, at its meeting on 8 September 2005, followings its 
consideration of the Audit Commission’s report of its Best Value Inspection on the 
Council’s approach to Customer Access and Focus, the Executive Cabinet had 
agreed to request this Panel to ‘analyse what approach to Area Forums would be best 
for the Borough based on a clear assessment of its effectiveness of current local 
groups and the best way to integrate them’ as part of the present scrutiny inquiry into 
public participation in the Council’s decision making process. 
 
The Panel accepted the logic of the request, which, if incorporated into the Project 
Outline document, would allow the Panel to take account of the experience and 
perceived success or otherwise of the planned Area Forum pilot schemes to be 
established in three areas of the Borough. 
 
It was AGREED that the Project Outline (Scoping) Document for the Panel’s Public 
Participation scrutiny inquiry be revised to incorporate the following additional element 
to the Inquiry’s terms of reference: 
 
‘To analyse what approach to Area Forums would be best for the Borough based on a 
clear assessment of the effectiveness of current local groups and the best way to 
integrate them.’ 
 
(b) Reports on Sub-Group' Visits  
 
The Panel at its meeting on 4 October, had agreed arrangements for identified 
members of the Area Forums/Committees Sub-Group and the Public 
Speaking/Questions Sub-Group to attend a number of meetings in surrounding 
Lancashire Districts as part of the Panel’s collation of evidence for the Public 
Participation inquiry. 
 
At the instigation of the Chairman, the Members who were able to attend the selected 
meetings were invited to report their findings on the visits and comment on the 
perceived effectiveness of the arrangements adopted by the respective Authorities.  In 
response, the following comments were proferred by the Members: 
 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 8 November 2005 

 
(i) Area Forums/Committees Sub-Group 
 

 • The Chairman (Councillor Perks) and Councillors Bedford, Brownlee 
and Morgan had attended Hyndburn Borough Council’s Great 
Harwood Area Council on 11 October 2005. 

 
  A note on the Members’ attendance at the Area Council was 

presented by Councillor Brownlee, who had been impressed with the 
organisation and operation of the Area Council, the attendance figures 
(approximately 70), the topics discussed and level of debate. 

 
  Councillor Brownlee considered that it would be beneficial for the Sub-

Group to observe an Area Forum body whose remit encompassed a 
Parish area to judge its relationship with the Parish Council. 

 

 • The Sub-Group had been unable to be represented at either Pendle 
Borough Council’s Colne Area Committee on 13 October or South 
Ribble Borough Council’s Bamber Bridge Area Committee on 31 
October. 

 
(ii) Public Speaking/Questions Sub-Group 
 

 • The Chairman (Councillor Perks) and Councillors Mrs M Gray and Mrs 
I Smith had attended South Ribble Borough Council’s Cabinet meeting 
on 12 October 2005. 

 
  A note highlighting the procedures and protocols adopted for the 

organisation and conduct of the meeting; issues raised at a later 
discussion with five Cabinet Members and Officers; and issues related 
to Area Committees was presented to the Panel. 

 
  The Chairman indicated how the operational arrangements, conduct 

procedure rules and constructive debates had impressed the visiting 
members.  The Members had noted, in particular, the perceived 
benefit of the fact that the public had been prior consulted on a 
number of issues by way of previous discussions at Area Committees. 

 

 • The Chairman (Councillor Perks) and Councillor Culshaw had 
attended Ribble Valley Borough Council’s Planning Committee on 27 
October 2005. 

 
  One person representing the proposers and opposers of planning 

applications was each allowed to address the Committee for 3 
minutes, provided 24 hours notice had been given. 

 
  The Members had been impressed with the layout and pleasant, 

comfortable ambience of the meeting venue. 
 

 • Councillors Culshaw and Mrs M Gray had attended Hydburn Borough 
Council’s Planning Committee on 2 November 2005. 

 
  A time limit of 10 minutes was imposed for the presentations made at 

the meeting. 
 
  The Committee allowed one person representing the proposers and 

opposers of most planning applications to each address the 
Councillors for 3 minutes, with two persons being allowed to speak on 
major applications. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 4  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Tuesday, 8 November 2005 

 

 • The Panel noted that both Hyndburn and Ribble Valley Councils 
adopted the practice of allowing every planning application in respect 
of which objections were lodged to be presented to its Planning 
Committee for determination. 

 
  The Members considered that, should the Council be recommended to 

adopt a system to allow members of the public to speak at the 
Development Control Committee, it would be important to (i) stipulate 
a time limit for speaking; (ii) consider means of notifying applicants 
whenever objectors indicate a wish to address the Committee in order 
to allow them the same facility; and (iii) consider means of dealing with 
Parish Council representations. 

 
(c) Future Visits  
 
At the request of the Chairman, a list detailing a number of forthcoming meetings of 
neighbouring Authorities’ Area Forums/Committees, including bodies that operated in 
Parish areas, was circulated at the meeting. 
 
In addition, the Panel considered that it would be beneficial to observe another 
Authority’s Council meeting and a Planning Committee meeting of a neighbouring 
Authority that had adopted a delegation scheme similar to the scheme operated in 
Chorley. 
 
It was AGREED: 
 
(1)  That members of the Area Forums/Committees Working Group, together with 
Councillor Whittaker, be e-mailed with the circulated list of the impending Area Forum 
bodies to be held in the Pendle, South Ribble and Rossendale Districts and requested 
to notify the Democratic Services Section as soon as possible of the dates on which 
they will be available so that a timetable of further visits can be compiled with the 
agreement of the Chairman and arrangements made for the selected visits. 
 
(2)  That arrangements be made for the Public Speaking/Questions Sub-Group to visit 
an early meeting of West Lancashire District Council’s Planning Committee. 
 

05.COM.38 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2005/06  
 
The Panel received, for information, the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 
2005/06, which had been agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its last 
meeting. 
 
The programme included the envisaged timescales for the on-going scrutiny inquiries 
and the planned dates for the periodic monitoring of past inquiries. 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



ADMINGEN/91366LM 

WEST CRAVEN COMMITTEE – PENDLE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Notes in relation to my visit on Tuesday, 29th November 2005. 
 
Committee is one of 5 – this particular one covers 3 Borough Ward areas.  Membership involves all 
9 Ward Councillors plus co-opted representatives, 1 representative from each of the 3 Parish 
Councils, 1 from a Town Council, Customer Panels, Town Centre Forums and CED Partnership. 
 
No Councillor representative from County Council. 
 
Members can propose and second but only a Borough Councillor can vote. 
 
Committee meets every month and rotates venues in all 3 Wards, it also varies its meeting venues 
in each of those Wards.  System has been operating for past 10 years.  Chairman of this 
Committee served all 10 years.  Chairman elected by Committee – cannot be changed by Full 
Council. 
 
Members and co-opted members may request item – Chairman sets agenda with officers. 
 
If specific issue relating to area requires consultation then it is brought to the Committee. 
 
Advertised in press and local leaflets. 
 
Public may speak for up to 5 minutes. 
 
Question Time operated with no prior notice required.  Answers given at meeting if possible or 
written reply if information not available.  If issues arise, Chairman operates system of arranging 
separate meeting to discuss issue, prior to a leaflet drop carried out in area of issue. 
 
Delegated powers in place for Planning issues, traffic regulation.  Applicants and objectors allowed 
to address Committee (5 minutes). 
 
Budget allocated for environmental improvements. 
 
Capital items brought to Committee, along with other Executive and Scrutiny reports. 
 
This year £300,000 capital and £100,000 revenue budget allocated to the 5 Committees pro rata 
per electors in each Committee area. 
 
Staff attending: Committee Co-ordinator – service manager level, Planning Officer and Legal 
Officer.  Sometimes Service Head and Executive Member attend if an appropriate issue appears 
on agenda. 
 
Partnerships within area attend if issue arises or request made. 
 
Police attend and have agenda item every meeting – does clash with PACT meeting as Committee 
meets monthly. 
 
Meetings follow an agenda and reports follow Planning items. 
 
General comments from observations made at this meeting: 
 
Committee routines well established and 15 members were in attendance.  Clear agenda and 
detailed papers provided by Council.  Chairman’s experience and knowledge of issues quite 
evident.  Well run meeting with everybody given opportunity to speak and time given to members 
of the public. 
 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 5



ADMINGEN/91366LM 

10 members of the public and planning consultants present, plus 2 members of the press.   
3 officers in attendance: Committee Co-ordinator, Planning and Legal Officers. 
 
More members of the public generally attend – evening was particularly cold and no big issue or 
planning application on agenda. 
 
Meeting commenced on time at 7.00pm and finished at 9.00pm. 
 
 
Councillor Mark Perks 
 
30/11/2005 

Agenda Item 4aAgenda Page 6



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME – 2005/06 
 

 

Function/topic 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

 
J 

1. Holding the Executive to Account OSC             

 Annual Budget/Council House Rents        3      

 Annual Budget Consultation      3  3      

 Provisional full year Performance Indicator          3    

ESP    �   � � � �  
� 

Com SP    �   � � � �  
� 

 Business Plan and Performance Indicator 
Updates 

Cust SP    �   � � � �  
� 

 OSC    �   � � � �  � 

 BVPP (Corporate Plan overall performance)  �            

 Monitoring of Sickness Absence (6 monthly 
update) 

      �     
 

� 

2. Policy Development and Review              

 Other to be identified              

3. External Scrutiny/Community Concern Full 
Scrutiny Inquiry 

             

Public Participation/Communication ComSP             

LCC’s arrangement for the Scrutiny of health 
function – Periodic Review 

CustSP 
   

3 
        

 Parkwise Scheme  CustSP             

4.  Monitoring of Inquiries              

 Housing Maintenance Appointments System CustSP   �      �    

 Flooding, Flood Prevention and Contingency 
 Plan/Proposals 

ESP      �      � 

 Chorley Markets - Occupancy of Stalls & 
 Associated Matters 

CustSP   �      �    

 Juvenile Nuisance  ComSP             

 Grass Cutting ESP      �      � 

 Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley ComSP       3      

 One-Stop Shop CustSP       3      

 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit ESP            � 

5. Other              

 O & S Training Programme OSC   3      �    
              

 
OSC      -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee                        ESP      -  Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
ComSP -  Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel             CustSP  -  Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 7



 

ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Topics/Issues to be Programmed 
 

Ref Topic/Issue Title Date 
Included 

Priority 
Score 

Source Brief Description 

  
Full Scrutiny Inquiries 
 
Priority List 
 
IEG Measurement of Council’s progress 
(Cust SP) 
 
 
 
 
Reserve List 
 
 
 
 
Policy Development/Review 
 
Priority List 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reserve List 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
26/06/03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
4 and 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Referred to Customer O & S Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A
g
e
n
d

a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n

d
a
 P

a
g

e
 8


